Shore Capital Group Limited Report and Financial Statements

31 December 2016

Report and Financial Statements 2016

Contents

	Page
Officers and professional advisers	1
Chairman's statement	2
Corporate governance	13
Directors' report	17
Statement of directors' responsibilities	20
Independent auditors' report	21
Consolidated income statement	23
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income	24
Consolidated statement of financial position	25
Consolidated statement of changes in equity	26
Consolidated cash flow statement	28
Notes to the financial statements	29

Officers and Professional Advisers

Directors

Howard Shore Lynn Bruce Dr Zvi Marom* James Rosenwald III *

Secretary

Lynn Bruce

Company Number

51355

Registered Office

Martello Court Admiral Park St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 3HB

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services (Guernsey) Limited 3rd Floor Natwest House Le Truchot St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 1WD

Legal Adviser

Carey Olsen Carey House Les Banques St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 4BZ

Auditor

Deloitte LLP Regency Court Glategny Esplanade St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 3HW

Bankers

Royal Bank of Scotland International Royal Bank Place 1 Glategny Esplanade St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 4BQ

Nominated Adviser

Grant Thornton UK LLP 30 Finsbury Square London EC2P 2YU

Broker

Shore Capital Stockbrokers Ltd Bond Street House 14 Clifford Street London W1S 4JU

^{*}Non-executive

Chairman's Statement

Introduction

Despite the market uncertainty immediately pre-and-post the Brexit vote, and the period leading up to the US Presidential election, I am delighted by the performance of our Capital Markets business and the strong progress made in our Asset Management division.

On a reported basis the Group's performance includes the year-on-year comparison of 2015, during which it sold German spectrum licences. Setting the licence sale to one side, Group revenues grew by 21% to £39.4 million.

Of particular note is the excellent performance in our Capital Markets business, where revenues grew 21% to £28.3 million; profits rose 45% to £6.8 million; and net margins increased to 24%. This performance was driven by the addition of 11 new retained corporate clients, including Dairy Crest Group plc; and the team's work on an array of capital markets transactions, including four IPOs, the largest AIM fundraise of 2016 for Sirius Minerals plc, and advising Poundland Group plc on its £600 million takeover by Steinhoff International.

The range and complexity of work our Capital Markets team has undertaken during the year results from its ability to exploit market opportunities arising in a challenging environment, as bigger banks focused on the implications of Brexit. Looking ahead, we believe there will continue to be high-quality opportunities where our service-orientated approach will prove to be attractive to more clients.

Having positioned our business to benefit from improving market conditions, we are continually exploring new ways to develop our proposition. As the quantity of equity capital markets research decreases in future, it is clear that the demand for high-quality investment opportunities and valuable ideas will only increase. Accordingly, during the year we committed additional resources to our research and distribution capabilities, enhancing our coverage across a number of industries.

In a year of significant market volatility driven by geopolitical events, the Group's market making operation performed strongly, providing significant liquidity in the immediate aftermath of the Brexit referendum and US election results. The team grew both revenues and profits by double-digit percentages, reinforcing our position as the third largest market maker on the London Stock Exchange.

Our Asset Management business grew revenues by 10% to £10.4 million and whilst our investment in the business led to lower profits of £2.0 million and a net margin of 19%, we have increased the team's capabilities and capacity, enabling the business to implement the next stage of its growth strategy.

The Private Client division increased funds under management to £200 million (2015: £155 million), again achieving a record-breaking £31 million fundraise for Puma VCT 12, as well as securing and allotting significant inflows to the Puma EIS Service, which is approaching £50 million under management. Puma Heritage and the Puma AIM Inheritance Tax Service celebrated their third and second anniversaries respectively, both continuing to deliver impressive returns for investors, with the latter being named Best AIM Investment Manager at 2016's Growth Investor Awards.

Chairman's Statement

Introduction (continued)

In Institutional Asset Management, Brandenburg Realty completed its second investment. Using Shore Capital's advisory services, it is focused on developing its existing portfolio and seeking new acquisition opportunities. At Puma Brandenburg, the Group assisted with a number of disposals and continued to look for new ways to optimise capital resources and actively manage its asset base.

In Principal Finance, we incurred a £2.7 million pre-tax write down of various assets during the year, which equated to £1.6 million after tax and minority interests. These impairments relate to reassessments of the fair value of various Group assets at the year end. Elsewhere in the division, DBD continues to hold its remaining 32 regional radio spectrum licences which cover many of Germany's largest metropolitan centres. An initial pilot utilising a temporary licence has commenced in Berlin.

Finally, as announced separately, I am relinquishing my operational responsibilities as Group Chief Executive and these will be taken over by Simon Fine and David Kaye as joint Chief Executive Officers. I will continue as Chairman of the Group, focusing on our international investment strategy, including developing new relationships as well as investment opportunities.

Having led the Group's growth and development for 32 years I am extremely excited by the favourable environment for our operating businesses. Simon and David have worked closely with me for many years and I am delighted that they have agreed to lead the Group's future development.

Financial Review

Income and expenditure

Revenue for the year decreased by 6.1% to £39.4 million (2015: £42.0 million) whilst administrative expenses increased by 13.5% to £34.2 million (2015: £30.1 million). The Group recorded balance sheet impairments of £2.7 million (2015: nil), leading to an operating profit of £2.6 million (2015: £11.8 million). Group profit before tax decreased by 79.4% to £2.4 million (2015: £11.7 million).

At the Group level, comparisons to the prior year were impacted by the sale of spectrum licences in the Principal Finance division in June 2015. Excluding this sale, revenue for the period increased 21% year-on-year.

Revenue from Capital Markets increased by 21% to £28.3 million (2015: £23.4 million). Profit before tax was up 44.6% to £6.8 million (2015: £4.7 million), with a net margin of 24.0% (2015: 20.1%).

Revenue from Asset Management was up 10% to £10.4 million (2015: £9.5 million), generating profit before tax of £2.0 million (down 25.4% from 2015: £2.7 million), representing a net margin of 19.0% (2015: 27.9%).

The Principal Finance division recorded a pre-tax loss of £4.2 million (2015: profit of £5.1 million, including the licence sales).

Basic Earnings per Share

The Group generated earnings per share of 6.0p (2015: 27.1p).

Comprehensive Earnings per Share

On a comprehensive basis, the Group generated earnings per share of 7.3p (2015: 27.7p).

Liquidity

As at the balance sheet date, available liquidity was £32.7 million (2015: £28.7 million) comprising £23.9 million (2015: £22.1 million) of cash and £8.8 million (2015: £6.6 million) of gilts and bonds. In addition, the Group has a £20 million working capital facility which was unused at the year end.

This liquidity demonstrates the Group's continuing ability to undertake a range of transactions as opportunities arise in the near term.

Financial Review (continued)

Balance sheet

The Group's balance sheet remains strong. Total equity at the year end was £67.1 million (2015: £67.0 million), reflecting the profit in the year offset by dividends paid to minority shareholders in 2016.

In addition to the £23.9 million of cash and £8.8 million of gilts and bonds referred to above, the Group held £4.0 million in various of its Puma funds, £3.5 million net in quoted equities and a further £3.6 million in other unquoted holdings. The licences held in the Group's Spectrum Investments were valued at £2.1 million (on a gross basis, before allowing for minority interests).

The remainder of the balance sheet was £21.2 million net, which included £15.1 million of net market and other debtors in the Company's stockbroking subsidiary.

During the year, the Group recorded a £2.7 million pre-tax write down in the Principal Finance division. The impact after tax and minority interests was £1.6 million. These impairments relate to reassessments of the fair value of various Group assets at the year end.

Net Asset Value per Share

Net asset value per share at the year end was 269.6p (2015: 268.7p).

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of 5.0p (2015: nil). The dividend will be paid on Wednesday 26 April 2017 to shareholders on the register as at Friday 7 April 2017.

Operating review

Capital Markets

Overview

Despite a turbulent geopolitical environment, the Capital Markets division performed strongly in 2016, increasing revenues by 21% to £28.3 million. The year saw the business grow its client base, develop its service offering and act on a significant number of high-profile transactions.

The team participated in four IPOs and a large number of transformational fundraisings for its growing client base, to which 11 new, retained corporate clients were added during the year. Particular highlights included acting on the largest AIM fundraise of 2016, for Sirius Minerals plc; and advising Poundland Group plc on its £600 million takeover by Steinhoff International.

Additional investment has been made to augment our research and distribution proposition, enhancing our sector coverage across a number of industries during the year. The high quality of our research product continued to gain recognition during the year, scoring strongly with clients and in external surveys, such as Extel and Starmine.

Our Market Making and Fixed Income businesses have performed very well in the face of substantial market uncertainty, delivering increased levels of revenue and profitability and providing key sources of liquidity in turbulent times.

The business remains alive to opportunities and will continue to invest in high calibre individuals and teams where the Company identifies opportunities for incremental growth.

Corporate Finance

During 2016, the team has continued to be very active and participated in four IPOs, 20 secondary fundraisings and a number of significant transactions including:

- Sole sponsor and joint bookrunner to Chesnara plc on its £70 million placing and open offer to fund the €160 million acquisition of L&G Netherland;
- Joint bookrunner to John Menzies plc on its £75 million rights issue to fund the US\$202 million acquisition of ASIG from BBA Aviation plc;
- Co-lead manager on the £370 million placing and open offer equity element of Sirius Minerals plc's US\$1.2 billion stage one financing, the largest fundraise on AIM in 2016;
- Co-bookrunner on the Main Market IPO of Motorpoint Group plc, raising £100 million;
- Co-lead manager on a placing by Playtech plc, raising £329 million;
- Joint bookrunner on a placing by Vernalis plc, raising £40 million;
- Joint bookrunner on the £27 million placing by Stride Gaming plc to fund the acquisition of Tarco, Netboost Media and 8Ball;
- Sponsor and joint bookrunner to two placings by NextEnergy Solar Fund Limited, raising £115 million and £42 million;
- Joint bookrunner on the €23 million placing of founder stock by Applegreen plc; and
- Nominated adviser and sole broker on the IPOs of Cerillion plc and Yü Group plc and nominated adviser and joint broker on the IPO of Amryt Pharma plc;

Our advisory work included acting as joint financial adviser and joint broker to Market Tech Holdings Limited in connection with its move from AIM to the Main Market and as corporate broker to Poundland Group plc in connection with its £600 million takeover by Steinhoff International.

We continue to attract high quality corporate clients, adding 11 new retained corporate clients in the year, including Dairy Crest Group plc, Chesnara plc, Motorpoint Group plc; Stride Gaming plc, and Earthport plc.

Research and Sales

Equity capital markets continue to evolve within the context of considerable macro-economic, political and industry-specific change, not least the forthcoming implementation of MiFID II. In these respects it is pleasing to see that the high calibre of our equity research retains its relevance to portfolio managers and the broader corporate community alike.

During the year we carefully grew the team, expanding our coverage and capabilities, adding stock coverage in building materials, healthcare, industrials, media and technology. The team's stability and experience continued to resonate with the asset management community, reflected in strong internal voting scores from our clients and continuing excellent positions in the Extel and Starmine surveys, where person-for-person we punch materially above our weight.

Looking to the future, we remain confident in our team's capabilities to compete and ultimately further expand our coverage, reach and corporate client base. In this respect, our stock execution function will evolve from its firm foundations so that it continues to offer value and relevance to clients, whilst focusing research coverage and capabilities where it can have the most beneficial impact.

Market Making

In a year of significant market volatility driven by geopolitical events, the Group's market making operation performed strongly, growing both revenues and profits by double-digit percentages. Trading volumes were 12% higher than in 2015, a commendable result considering the market uncertainty that prevailed throughout the year.

The team positioned its inventory prudently during the year, enabling us to provide significant liquidity in the immediate aftermath of the Brexit referendum and US election results. This approach, reflected in the wide variety of equities to which we provide access, enabled us to reinforce our position as the third largest market maker on the London Stock Exchange.

Although clearly sensitive to the overall market environment, Shore Capital remains focused and adaptable to changes in trading conditions and to the needs of clients. Market making operations continue to benefit from the team's wide stock coverage and its reputation as a strong and trusted counterparty. The market making team comprises highly experienced traders who are able to identify revenue opportunities despite challenging market conditions, whilst operating within a risk framework that ensures loss days are a rare occurrence.

Fixed Income

The fixed income team's extensive experience enables the Group to offer its clients a fuller range of financing options for mid-sized corporates, creating exciting opportunities for growth in the Capital Markets business. The team enjoyed its first full year within the Group, having joined from Edmond de Rothschild in late 2015, and made a positive contribution to the business in what has been a challenging environment, demonstrating its capability to grow primary capital opportunities for clients.

Asset Management

Overview

The Asset Management division enjoyed notable successes during the period across its institutional and private client businesses such that during the year total assets under management grew from £770 million to £825 million.

In the institutional business, our German advisory team assisted Brandenburg Realty in the completion of its second acquisition for €32 million; and helped Puma Brandenburg to complete a €90 million refinancing. The team also helped Puma Brandenburg to advance the implementation of its strategic objectives, particularly with the sale of its housing estate in Neukoelln and progress development works at its flagship Hyatt Regency Hotel in Cologne.

The Private Client division increased funds under management to £200 million (2015: £155 million), again achieving a record-breaking fundraise for its latest VCT, Puma VCT 12, as well as securing and allotting significant inflows to the Puma EIS Service, which is approaching £50 million under management. Puma Heritage and the Puma AIM Inheritance Tax Service celebrated their third and second anniversaries respectively, both continuing to deliver impressive returns for investors.

During the course of the year we continued our commitment to invest in the business, hiring several key personnel, particularly in the Private Client division, adding to its investment and business development teams as it continues implementing its growth strategy.

Institutional Asset Management

Brandenburg Realty

In line with its strategy to invest in German residential and commercial real estate, Brandenburg Realty (the "Fund") completed its second acquisition in May 2016 of a €32 million commercial and residential portfolio located in the city of Potsdam near Berlin. This portfolio benefits from high quality commercial tenants and the possibility to develop additional residential space. The asset advisory team continues to seek and recommend additional acquisition opportunities for the Fund, helping it to implement the agreed strategy for this asset and also for the Monumenten Strasse residential building, which was acquired in the prior period. At this asset, the team assisted in the sale of five apartments, achieving an average price per square metre significantly in excess of expectations.

Puma Brandenburg Limited ("PBL")

The Group has continued to assist PBL to achieve success across its portfolio, including:

- The sale of the Sonnensiedlung housing estate located in Neukoelln, Berlin through a share sale in July 2016;
- The planning and execution of a capital project to add and enlarge conference and food and beverage facilities at the Hyatt Regency, Cologne. These works, which are co-funded by Hyatt, commenced in June 2016 and were completed on schedule at the end of November 2016;
- As previously reported, the successful drawdown in June 2016 of an eight year, €90 million loan facility for the refinancing of a commercial portfolio. The portfolio includes the Hyatt Regency Cologne and IBIS Nuremberg.

St Peter Port Capital ("SPPC")

SPPC announced its interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2016 on 26 October 2016. As at that date, excluding investments written off, it had investments in 17 companies and reported that it had generated £161,000 from realisations since 1 April 2016.

Prior to the release of its results, the company had announced that it was launching a review of the strategic options available to it, including a potential sale of the company. Accordingly, the company entered an offer period, enabling any potentially interested parties to approach it without having to make any formal announcement.

The strategic review was launched in order to stimulate liquidity in what remains a challenging market for its portfolio companies. It reported its view that any significant cash return is predicated on one or more of its top five holdings progressing to the next planned phase of growth, which for several of them relies on their raising significant further funds.

Private Client Investments

Overview

The Group's private client business, Puma Investments, continues to make strong progress. During the year the company invested in the next phase of its growth, hiring key personnel to expand its capabilities.

Of particular note was the launch of Puma VCT 12, which closed in 2016 having raised £31 million – accounting for more than half of the total funds raised in the limited-life VCT market in the 2015/16 tax year. In addition, we have seen continued expansion of Puma EIS, Puma Heritage and the Puma AIM Inheritance Tax Service. We were particularly proud that the strong performance of the AIM service was recognised by the industry and named Best AIM Investment Manager at 2016's Growth Investor Awards.

Puma Venture Capital Trusts ("VCTs")

The Group's Puma VCTs are each limited-life vehicles, aiming to distribute the initial capital and returns to their investors after five years. Since 2005 over £223 million has been raised for Puma VCTs and more than £89 million has been distributed back to shareholders.

Puma's strong VCT track record is reflected in the fact that each of the first five Puma VCTs have led their peer group for total returns, with Puma VCT V having returned 106.3p per share (on a net cost of investment of 70p) in cash distributions to shareholders over its life. The current stable of funds are all performing well and have paid out tax-free dividends of between 5p and 7p per annum to shareholders.

Puma VCT 12 closed for subscriptions during the period, raising £31 million which accounted for more than half of the total funds raised in the limited-life VCT market in the 2015/16 tax year. The Group considers this fundraising to be a considerable achievement and an endorsement of Puma's standing in the VCT sector.

In view of the many changes to VCT investment rules which have been introduced in recent months, the launch of our latest VCT, Puma VCT 13, has been delayed whilst we await clarification on the new rules in guidance notes which have not yet been issued by HMRC.

The Group considers that the responsible approach is to allow some time for these rules to bed in and to review the accompanying guidance notes before raising additional capital. We are making good progress in deploying the funds raised in previous VCTs and have sufficient capital to continue to back businesses that meet our stringent investment criteria.

Puma Heritage plc

Puma Heritage was launched in June 2013 to operate in a range of sectors, with a primary focus on secured lending. It focuses on capital preservation, whilst seeking to produce regular returns for shareholders intended to counter long-term inflationary pressures. An investment in Puma Heritage is intended to benefit from 100% relief from Inheritance Tax after two years.

The company celebrated its third anniversary in June 2016, having recorded a significant acceleration in its net asset value ("NAV") during the period. Subscriptions from new shareholders and good levels of return generated from its diversified loan book have increased the NAV of the company to over £28 million by 31 December 2016. Puma Heritage has participated in loans totalling £162 million to date. The business has a strong pipeline of loans to deploy current and future funds and remains optimistic about the prospects for further NAV growth over the coming months and years.

During the period, we advised Puma Heritage plc on the completion of several asset-backed loans across a number of sectors, all secured with a first charge over real estate at conservative lending ratios. As at 31 December 2016, Puma Heritage had made 384 loans of which 38 were live and 346 had been repaid in full. The team continues to assist the business, helping it to source and analyse new lending opportunities. Puma Heritage remains open for investment and having reached critical mass, is in a position to continue growing rapidly.

Puma EIS

The Puma EIS portfolio service (the "EIS Service") was launched in November 2013 to offer investors the opportunity to invest in asset-backed Enterprise Investment Scheme qualifying companies utilising the team's strong track record and expertise in asset-backed investing gained from their experience running the Puma VCTs. Fundraising continued successfully throughout 2016, raising the amount in the EIS Service to c.£47 million. To date the EIS Service has invested into seven portfolio companies and has a good pipeline of further deployment opportunities.

Puma AIM Inheritance Tax Service

The Puma AIM IHT Service (the "AIM Service") is a discretionary portfolio service that seeks to mitigate Inheritance Tax by investing in a carefully selected portfolio of AIM shares and is particularly attractive for those that wish to invest via an ISA. Since launch in July 2014 to the end of 2016 the AIM Service has delivered a 43.9% return, outperforming the FTSE AIM All Share Index by 36.3%.

Our strong performance has resulted in us winning the Best AIM Investment Manager award at the Growth Investor Awards for 2016. Additionally, we were Highly Commended in the Best AIM IHT Portfolio Service category at the Investment Week Tax Efficiency Awards 2016/17.

The AIM Service has continued to grow assets and investor numbers during the year and we are confident of growing the service in the future. At the end of June 2017 we will reach our three year track record; a key hurdle for many financial advisers. In early 2017 we announced that the service is available through the Ascentric and Standard Life Investment Platforms, enabling us to access a wider range of Financial Advisers.

Principal Finance

The Principal Finance division seeks to use the Group's strong balance to invest in attractive opportunities and seed new funds.

During the year, the division incurred a £2.7 million pre-tax write down relating to various assets held in the division, which equates to £1.6 million after tax and minority interests.

This division also holds the Group's investment in DBD, which holds, through a subsidiary, 32 regional radio spectrum licences in Germany of indefinite duration (the "Licences"). Shore Capital holds a 59.94% interest in Spectrum Investments Limited, the parent company of DBD.

DBD has been given consent by the German Telecoms Regulator ("BNetzA") to test the LTE TDD technology which will support its business plan for the future use of the Licences, premised upon a small radio cells network concept. An initial pilot scheme has commenced in Berlin and DBD plans to roll out additional pilots in other areas covered by the Licences.

For the initial Berlin trial, at the request of BNetzA, DBD is using a temporary test licence granted to it by BNetzA. However, DBD believes that, as a result of Article 9a of the EU Framework Directive (2002/21/EC, as amended), implemented in Germany by Sec. 150 para 8 of the German Telecommunications Act, it should be permitted to use its existing Licences to conduct the pilot schemes and to support the roll out of its services in the future. BNetzA has yet to confirm its agreement.

In correspondence with DBD, BNetzA has noted that its ongoing consideration of the status and use of the Licences should be taken in the context of its ongoing review of spectrum frequency planning for the years after 2021/2022 and in particular its frequency concept for the 3.5GHz band, into which the Licences fall.

Current Trading and Prospects

We have seen companies wanting to get on with growing their businesses and institutions that want to buy into them. That cannot happen in a vacuum, demonstrating that markets are again open for business, focusing on the fundamentals of the deal, rather than market participants sitting on their hands and worrying about uncertainty.

Our independence puts us in an ideal place to make the most of the opportunities that will arise as market conditions improve.

Howard Shore

Chairman 29 March 2017

Corporate governance

General

Shore Capital Group Limited (the "Company" or the "Group") has sought to comply with a number of provisions contained in the UK Corporate Governance Code, issued by the Financial Reporting Council (the "Code") in relation to matters for which the Board is accountable to shareholders, so far as is considered appropriate for a company of its size and nature. Further explanation of how the principles and supporting principles have been applied is set out below.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises two executive and two non-executive directors. It carries ultimate responsibility for the conduct of the business of the Group. The Board maintains full control and direction over appropriate strategic and financial issues through regular meetings and reports to ensure that the Board is supplied with all the information it needs. The Board considers each of the non-executive directors, Dr Zvi Marom and James Rosenwald III, to be independent in character and judgement as whilst both own shares in the Company, each have significant other business interests and activities. The Board as a whole considers their shareholdings in the Company to be an advantage for the shareholders as in addition to their fiduciary duties, their interests are aligned with shareholders generally. The terms and conditions of appointment of the non-executive directors are available for inspection by any person at the Company's registered office and also at the Company's AGM.

The directors provide the Group with the knowledge, mix of skills, experience and networks of contacts required. The non-executive directors combine breadth of business and commercial experience with independent and objective judgement. The combination of non-executive and executive directors enables the Board to provide effective leadership and maintain a high standard of integrity across the Group.

Howard Shore is Executive Chairman of the Board and has also undertaken the function of full-time Chief Executive. On 29 March 2017, the Group announced that Howard Shore is relinquishing his role as Chief Executive. The Board has two committees, the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee (see below). The Board does not have a Nominations Committee or a senior independent director. This is because with two non-executive directors and a Board of only four in total, nominations can be readily handled without a committee by the Board as a whole, whilst the non-executive directors are accessible to shareholders in the event of issues arising.

The Board has an informal annual review process to assess how each of the directors is performing. The performance of the executive director is reviewed by the Chief Executive against previously agreed objectives and the Chief Executive's performance is in turn appraised by the non-executive directors. Remuneration is directly linked to these reviews and determined by the Remuneration Committee. Remuneration is set at the level required to attract, retain and motivate high calibre directors and a significant proportion of total remuneration is linked to corporate and individual performance.

The Board of Shore Capital Group Limited met five times during 2016. The number of meetings of the Board and the Audit and Remuneration Committees and individual attendance by members is set out in the following table.

Corporate governance (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)

	Board	Audit	Remuneration
Total number of meetings in 2016	5	3	1
Number of meetings attended in 2016:			
Howard Shore	5	n/a	n/a
Lynn Bruce	5	3	n/a
Dr Zvi Marom	5	2	1
James Rosenwald III	5	2	1

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision and delegates certain matters to committees as set out below. The Board determines the Group's overall strategy; creation, acquisition or disposal of material corporate entities and investments; development and protection of the Group's reputation; public announcements including statutory accounts; significant changes in accounting policy, capital structure and dividend policy, operating plans and review of key performance indicators, resolution of litigation, Group remuneration policy and Board structure, composition and succession.

Audit Committee

The Board has appointed an Audit Committee with written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available for inspection by any person at the Company's registered office during normal business hours and for 15 minutes prior to and during the Company's Annual General Meeting. It comprises two non-executive directors, Dr Zvi Marom and James Rosenwald III, together with Lynn Bruce and is chaired by Lynn Bruce. The Audit Committee undertakes a detailed review of the Company's half yearly and annual financial reports, is responsible for reviewing whether the accounting policies are appropriate and for monitoring internal compliance and external audit functions, including the cost effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the auditor. The committee meets periodically with the auditor to receive a report on matters arising from their work.

The committee receives a report from the external auditor concerning their internal processes to ensure that the independence and objectivity of the auditor are safeguarded at all times. The committee is satisfied that the safeguards and procedures established by the auditor are sufficient to counter threats or perceived threats to their objectivity.

Remuneration Committee

The Board has appointed a Remuneration Committee which comprises two non-executive directors, James Rosenwald III and Dr Zvi Marom, and is chaired by James Rosenwald III. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available for inspection by any person at the Company's registered office during normal business hours. The Remuneration Committee has given full consideration to Section B of the Best Practice Provisions annexed to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority. The principal function of the Remuneration Committee is to determine the Group's policy on executive remuneration. It makes its decisions in consultation with the Chairman and Chief Executive. No director plays a part in any decision about their own remuneration. The Committee meets periodically when it has proposals to consider and in any event no less than once each year.

Corporate governance (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The main aim of the committee's policy is to attract, retain and motivate high calibre individuals with a competitive remuneration package. Remuneration for executives comprises basic salary, performance related bonus, pension benefits, other benefits in kind and options granted pursuant to the Shore Capital Group Share Option Plan. No director has a service contract for longer than 12 months.

Going concern

The Group's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set out in the Chairman's Statement, together with the financial position of the Group, its liquidity position and borrowing facilities. In addition note 25 to the financial statements includes policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group has considerable financial resources together with an established business model. As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Internal control

In accordance with Principle C.2 of the Code, the Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group's systems of internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance, which are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and comply with the Financial Reporting Council risk guidance. The controls are used in identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks of the Group on an ongoing basis. These internal controls have been in place from the start of the year through to the date of approval of this report. They include:

- ensuring that an appropriate organisational structure exists with clear lines of responsibility and delegation of authority;
- the allocation of responsibility for important business functions to experienced and suitably qualified staff;
- detailed budgets and plans which are approved by the Group Board;
- regular consideration by the Board of actual results compared with budgets and forecasts;
- compliance by subsidiaries with Group operating procedures and policies;
- annual review of the Group's insurance cover;
- defined procedures for the appraisal and authorisation of capital expenditure and capital disposals; and
- regular reporting of the Company's liquidity position.

An internal annual review has been carried out of the effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal financial controls. In addition, the Group has considered the need to introduce a group internal audit function but has decided that it is inappropriate for a Group of this size. It should be noted that many of the activities which would be covered by such a function are already carried out as part of the compliance function.

Corporate governance (continued)

Relations with shareholders

The Group communicates with shareholders through both the interim and annual reports. In addition, all shareholders may attend the Company's Annual General Meeting where they may raise matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the Group.

Communication with the Group's largest institutional shareholders is undertaken as part of the Group's investor relations programme and any feedback arising is provided to the Board.

Directors Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

Activities and business review

The main activities of the Group consist of investment related activities, including stockbroking, market-making, corporate finance advice, asset management including specialist fund management and principal finance.

A review of the year and future developments is contained in the Chairman's statement. The statement also includes details of the key performance indicators which management use.

Results and dividends

The results for the financial year are set out in the Income Statement. No interim dividend was paid during the year (2015: nil). The directors propose a final dividend of 5.0p for the year ended 2016 (2015: nil) making a total of 5.0p for the year (2015: nil).

Capital structure

Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the company's issued share capital during the year are shown in note 24 of the financial statements. The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the Company.

There are no restrictions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provision of the Articles of Association. No person has any special rights of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid.

Regulatory Capital (unaudited)

Capital resources*, capital requirements and surplus capital at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Group		
Capital resources per statement of financial position	67,085	67,042
Less non EU resources	(31,091)	(38,805)
Capital resources	35,994	28,237
Less Capital Resources Requirement	(8,741)	(8,675)
Surplus capital resources	27,253	19,562

The Group's lead regulator is the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) in the UK. Four of the Group's operating subsidiaries are regulated by the FCA which imposes a minimum level of regulatory capital which must be maintained by each company and also an overall level of regulatory capital which must be maintained by the Group's UK businesses*. The Group has maintained a surplus throughout the year over its regulatory capital requirements.

Directors Report (continued)

As a result of the Group's history of strong organic growth, retained reserves have been the primary source of capital resources. The Group's balance sheet is strong and it continues to generate cash from its operations.

Capital resources are largely comprised of share capital and reserves, net of intangible assets. Capital requirements are derived from credit risk, market risk and operational risk considerations.

* The calculation of Capital Resources for the purposes of these rules only permits the inclusion of resources that are located in EU countries. Accordingly, the amount of Capital resources as presented in the table above excludes the assets and liabilities that are held by the Group's Guernsey based companies.

Risk management

The Group's policies for managing the financial risks arising from its activities, including the use of derivative instruments, are set out in note 25. In addition the Group has policies and procedures in place to mitigate the other risks to which it is exposed, including reputational risk, operational risk and insurance risk. The Group's activities comprise capital market activities, asset management and principal finance, and its income is therefore subject to the level of general activity, sentiment and market conditions in each of the markets in which it operates.

Directors

The directors who served the Company during the financial year and their beneficial interests in the ordinary shares of the Company were:

	Ordinary shares of Nil par value			
	31 December 2016	31 December 2015		
Howard Shore	8,941,497	8,941,497		
Lynn Bruce	27,027	27,027		
Dr Zvi Marom	45,182	45,182		
James Rosenwald III	138,412	138,412		

The beneficial interests of the directors in share options over ordinary shares of the Company are set out in note 6e to the financial statements.

The Company makes qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which are in force at the date of this report.

Charitable donations

The Group made charitable donations of £43,000 (2015: £233,000) during the year.

Events after the balance sheet date

Details of events after the balance sheet date are set out in note 26.

Going concern

The Group's liquidity position is set out in note 19 and its borrowing facilities in note 21. In addition, note 25 includes details of policies and processes for managing its capital; its financial risk management objectives; details of its financial instruments and hedging activities; and its exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

Directors Report (continued)

The Group has considerable financial resources together with an established business model. As a consequence, the directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully.

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Environmental policy

The Group aims wherever appropriate to be environmentally conscious. During the year, it recycled a large amount of waste paper and arranged for used printer cartridges and office furniture and equipment to be collected for recycling and environmentally sound disposal. It has adopted low energy lighting systems where appropriate.

Major shareholdings

Other than directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of holdings of 3% or more of the shares of the Company as at 03 April 2017:

	Ordinary Shares	% 0
G B Shore (direct and beneficial interest)	1,962,079	9.01
J P Morgan Asset Management Holdings (UK) Limited	1,543,196	7.09
Aralon Resources and Investment Company Limited	1,267,380	5.82
Miton Group plc	1,149,079	5.28
Helium Special Situations Fund Limited	696,600	3.20

Auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that:

- so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and
- the directors have taken all the steps which they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s249(2) of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

Deloitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office. A resolution to re-appoint them as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Lynn Bruce

Company Secretary 3 April 2017

Martello Court Admiral Park St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 3HB

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Group financial statements in accordance with applicable rules and regulations.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that IFRS financial statements present fairly for each financial year the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International Accounting Standards Board's 'Framework for the preparation and presentation of financial statements'. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs.

The directors are required to prepare Group financial statements for each financial year, in accordance with applicable Guernsey law and those International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union, which present fairly the financial position of the Group and the financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that period. In preparing those financial statements the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies in accordance with IAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes on Accounting Estimates and Errors" and then apply them consistently;
- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the Company's financial position and financial performance;
- state that the Group has complied with IFRS, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company's website.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SHORE CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shore Capital Group Limited for the year ended 31 December 2016 which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 1 to 26. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

This report is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Section 262 of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of its profit for the year then ended;
- have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SHORE CAPITAL GROUP LIMITED

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- proper accounting records have not been kept; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Deloitte LLP Chartered Accountants Guernsey, Channel Islands 3 April 2017

Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016

	Notes	Total 2016 £'000	Total 2015 £'000
		£ 000	£ 000
Revenue	1, 2	39,408	41,952
Administrative expenditure		(34,187)	(30,129)
Balance sheet impairments		(2,664)	-
Operating profit	3	2,557	11,823
Interest income	4	239	191
Finance costs	5	(391)	(317)
	_ _	(152)	(126)
Profit before taxation	2	2,405	11,697
Taxation	7	(554)	(1,002)
Profit for the year	- =	1,851	10,695
Attributable to:			
Equity holders of the parent		1,302	6,445
Non-controlling interests		549	4,250
	=	1,851	10,695
Earnings per share			
Basic	9	6.0p	27.1p
Diluted	9	5.8p	26.1p

All transactions are in respect of continuing operations.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income For the year ended 31 December 2016

	Notes	Total 2016 £'000	Total 2015 £'000
Profit after tax for the year	_	1,851	10,695
Losses on revaluation of available-for-sale investments		(43)	(66)
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement			
Gains on cash flow hedges		70	31
Tax thereon		(14)	(6)
		56	25
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations		468	186
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax	_	524	211
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax	=	2,332	10,840
Attributable to:			
Equity holders of the parent		1,582	6,599
Non-controlling interests		750	4,241
	_ =	2,332	10,840
Comprehensive earnings per share			
Basic	9	7.3p	27.7p
Diluted	9	7.1p	26.7p

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As at 31 December 2016

	Notes		
		2016	2015
		£'000	£'000
Non-current assets			
Goodwill	12	381	381
Intangible assets	13	2,135	1,841
Property, plant & equipment	14	9,423	10,864
Investment properties	15	2,885	-
Principal Finance Investments	16	8,221	6,341
Deferred tax asset	7	<u> </u>	128
		23,045	19,555
Current assets			
Trading assets	17	12,290	9,344
Trade and other receivables	18	51,774	71,739
Financial instruments		123	54
Cash and cash equivalents	19	23,937	22,113
		88,124	103,250
Total assets	2	111,169	122,805
Current liabilities			
Trading liabilities		(765)	(946)
Trade and other payables	20	(31,126)	(43,998)
Financial instruments		(224)	(187)
Tax liabilities		(770)	(481)
Borrowings	21	(431)	(360)
		(33,316)	(45,972)
Non-current liabilities			
Borrowings	21	(10,649)	(9,256)
Deferred tax liability	7	(15)	-
Provision for liabilities and charges	22	(104)	(535)
		(10,768)	(9,791)
Total liabilities	2	(44,084)	(55,763)
Net assets		67,085	67,042
Capital and reserves			
Share capital	24	-	-
Share premium		336	336
Merger reserve		17,151	17,151
Other reserves		1,596	2,164
Retained earnings		39,587	38,845
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent		58,670	58,496
Non-controlling interest		8,415	8,546
Total equity		67,085	67,042
····		,00-	0.,0.2

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 3 April 2017. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lynn Bruce Director

James Rosenwald Director

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity For the year ended 31 December 2016

	Share capital £'000	Share Premium account £'000	Merger reserve £'000	Other Reserves £'000	Retained earnings £'000	Non- controlling interest £'000	Total £'000
At 1 January 2015 Retained profit for the	-	336	27,198	2,260	34,391	8,236	72,421
year	-	-	-	-	6,445	4,250	10,695
Revaluation of available for sale investments	-	-	-	(66)	-	-	(66)
Foreign currency translation	-	-	-	-	200	(14)	186
Valuation change on cash flow hedge	-	-	-	25	-	6	31
Tax on cash flow hedge (note 7)	_	-	-	(5)	-	(1)	(6)
Total comprehensive income	-	-	-	(46)	6,645	4,241	10,840
Decrease in deferred tax asset recognised directly in equity (note 7)				(54)			(54)
Equity dividends paid	_	_	-	(34)	_	_	
(note 8) Dividends paid to /	-	-	-	-	(1,208)	-	(1,208)
rebalancing of non controlling interests	-	-	-	-	(927)	(1,015)	(1,942)
Repurchase/cancellation of own shares (note 24) Capital distribution	-	-	(10,047)	-	-	-	(10,047)
from Spectrum to non controlling interests	-	-	-	-	-	(3,316)	(3,316)
Credit in relation to share based payments	-	-	-	4	-	-	4
Investment by non controlling interest in subsidiaries other than DBD/Spectrum	-	-	-	-	-	344	344
Adjustment arising from change in non controlling interest	-	-	-	-	(56)	56	-
At 31 December 2015	-	336	17,151	2,164	38,845	8,546	67,042

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) For the year ended 31 December 2016

	Share capital £'000	Share Premium account £'000	Merger reserve £'000	Other Reserves £'000	Retained earnings £'000	Non- controlling interest £'000	Total £'000
At 1 January 2016	-	336	17,151	2,164	38,845	8,546	67,042
Retained profit for the year Revaluation of available for sale	-	-	-	-	1, 302	549	1,851
investments	-	-	-	(43)	-	-	(43)
Foreign currency translation	-	-	-	-	278	190	468
Valuation change on cash flow hedge	-	-	-	56	-	14	70
Tax on cash flow hedge (note 7)	-		-	(11)	-	(3)	(14)
Total comprehensive income	-	-	-	2	1,580	750	2,332
Decrease in deferred tax asset recognised directly in equity (note							
7) Dividends paid to /	-	-	-	(581)	-	-	(581)
rebalancing of non controlling interests	-	-	-	-	(838)	(1,221)	(2,059)
Credit in relation to share based payments	-	-	-	11	-	-	11
Investment by non controlling interest in subsidiaries	-	-	-	-	-	340	340
At 31 December 2016	-	336	17,151	1,596	39,587	8,415	67,085

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2016

To the year chaca 31 December 2010	.4	2016	2015
INC	otes	2016 £'000	2015
Cash flows from operating activities		£ 000	£'000
Operating profit		2,557	11,823
Adjustments for:		2,331	11,023
·	14	3,534	977
	13	3,33 -	62
Share-based payment expense	1.5	11	4
Other (gains)/losses on available for sale investments		(255)	1,142
Other profit on sale of intangibles		(233)	(9,207)
Reduction on provision for national insurance on options		(431)	(),207)
Reduction on provision for national histirance on options		(431)	
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital		5,416	4,801
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables		19,896	(11,681)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables		(12,765)	14,231
Decrease/(increase) in trading assets positions		(181)	100
Increase in trading liabilities positions		(2,946)	(4,708)
Cash generated by generated by operations		9,420	2,743
Interest paid		(391)	(317)
Corporation tax paid		(717)	(1,652)
Net cash generated by operating activities		8,312	774
Cash flows from investing activities			
	14	(517)	(363)
Sale of intangibles	17	(317)	10,680
Purchase of investment property		(2,885)	10,000
	16	(1,808)	(3,750)
Sale of Principal Finance investments	10	141	(3,730)
Interest received		239	191
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities		(4,830)	6,758
Cash flows from financing activities			
Investment by non controlling interest in subsidiaries		340	344
Repurchase of own shares		-	(10,047)
Capital distribution to non controlling interests		-	(3,316)
Decrease in borrowings	21	(430)	(360)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders	8	-	(1,208)
Dividends paid to non controlling interests		(2,059)	(1,942)
Net cash used in financing activities		(2,149)	(16,529)
		4 222	(0.00 =)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		1,333	(8,997)
Effects of exchange rate changes		491	452
	19	22,113	30,658
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	19	23,937	22,113

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated annual financial statements of Shore Capital Group Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the "Group") have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union ("Adopted IFRS").

Going concern

The Group continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements as discussed in more detail in the Directors' report.

Presentation of the financial statements and financial information

In accordance with Section 244(5) of the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, the financial statements of the parent company are not presented as part of these financial statements.

Adoption of new and revised standards

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB that are mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.

IAS 1 (Amended) Disclosure Initiative

IFRS 10 (Amended) Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 (Amended) Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 (Amended) Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IAS 16 (Amended) Property, Plant and Equipment

IAS 27 (Amended) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IAS 38 (Amended) Intangible Assets

IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle Improvement cycle - various standards

Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the EU):

Annual Improvements to:

IAS 7 (Amended) Disclosure Initiative

IAS 12 (Amended) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

IFRS 2 (Amended) Share-based Payments IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 10 (Amended) Consolidated Financial Statements

IAS 28 (Amended) Investments in Associates

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in future periods, except that IFRS 9 will impact both the measurement and disclosures of financial instruments and IFRS 15 may have an impact on revenue recognition and related disclosures.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

General information

The Group is incorporated and registered in Guernsey. These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, this being the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates.

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments. The financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand (expressed as thousands and with no decimal place - £'000), except where otherwise indicated. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

During the year it was noted that certain investments had historically been presented incorrectly in the Statement of Financial Position. These have been re-presented in note 16, correctly allocating the relevant balances between Non Current - Available for Sale Assets and Non Current Fair Value Through Profit and Loss Assets. See note 16 for further details.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and the non controlling interest's share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Taxation

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject to routine tax audits and also a process whereby tax computations are discussed and agreed with the appropriate authorities. Whilst the ultimate outcome of such tax audits and discussions cannot be determined with certainty, management estimates the level of provision required for both current and deferred tax on the basis of professional advice and the nature of any current discussions with the tax authority concerned.

Deferred tax assets

Management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with an assessment of the effect of future tax planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets is set out in note 7.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Fair value of unquoted equity instruments

Where there is no available representative external valuation, judgement is required to determine the most appropriate valuation method for unquoted equity instruments. Further details are set out later in this note 1 and in notes 16, 17 and 25(f).

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. Judgement is required in determining the most appropriate valuation model for a grant of equity instruments, depending on the terms and conditions of the grant. Management are also required to use judgement in determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model. Details of the assumptions and model used are set out in note 6(c).

Intangibles

Where there is no available representative external valuation, judgement is required to determine the fair value at each balance sheet date to establish any indicators of impairment. Where the asset does not currently generate cash flows, the Group estimates the future cash flows discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate.

Revenue

Revenue includes the net profit/loss on principal trading, commission income, corporate advisory fees, fund management fees and other ancillary fees.

Dividends and interest arising on bull and bear positions in securities form part of dealing profits and, because they are also reflected by movements in market prices, are not identified separately.

Fees from advisory engagements for which the work is substantially complete or which are at a stage where work for which separate payment is due, and which will become due but are not yet invoiced are recorded on a right to consideration basis. Where such fees are contingent on the outcome of a transaction they are only accounted for after the transaction has exchanged.

Revenue, including revenue from Stock Exchange transactions, is accounted for at trade/contract date rather than settlement date. Revenue on construction contracts is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currency translation

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in sterling, which is the Group's functional currency. That is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement with the exception of differences on foreign currency borrowings accounted for as a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. These are taken directly to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognised in the income statement. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income statements are translated at average exchange rates for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to a separate component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.

Pension costs

The charge against profits is the amount of contributions payable in respect of defined contribution pension arrangements for directors and employees in the year.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interest in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 January 2005.

The Group engages in equity settled share-based payment transactions in respect of services received from certain employees and directors. The fair value of the services received is measured by reference to the fair value of the shares or share options granted on the date of the grant. The cost of the employee services received in respect of the share options granted is recognised in the income statement over the period that the services are received, which is the vesting period, together with a corresponding increase in equity. The fair value of the options granted is determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, which takes into account the exercise price of the option, the current share price, the risk-free interest rate, the expected volatility of the Group's share price over the life of the option and other relevant factors. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement expense for the year represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as the beginning and end of the year.

Employer's National Insurance ("NI") is accrued at the current rate of NI on differences between the market value at the balance sheet date of the shares that would be acquired when the options are exercised and the exercise price of those options.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share (further details are given in note 9).

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisition includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured at its acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they qualify as measurement period adjustments (see below). All other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability are accounted for in accordance with relevant IFRSs. Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously-held interests in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date the Group attains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3(2008) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the Group obtains complete information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date, and is subject to a maximum of one year.

Goodwill

On the acquisition of a business or an interest in a business which is to be consolidated, fair values are attributed to the share of identifiable net assets acquired. Where the cost of acquisition exceeds the fair value attributable to such assets, the difference is treated as purchased goodwill. Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being tested for impairment at that date. The Group evaluates goodwill annually and whenever circumstance indicates the possibility of impairment. Such evaluation is based on comparing the fair value of the cash-generating unit to its carrying value. Where the carrying value exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recorded for the difference.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased are measured initially at purchase cost, unless they are acquired as part of a business combination in which case they are measured initially at fair value which has been calculated on the basis of arm's length transactions.

Where such intangible assets have a remaining life of less than 20 years, they are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

Where such intangible assets have a remaining life of over 20 years, they are subject to an annual impairment test in accordance with the Group's accounting policy for the treatment of its non-financial assets.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of goodwill and other non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets (e.g. goodwill), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less any cost to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase. However, impairment losses relating to goodwill may not be reversed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment by equal annual instalments over their estimated useful lives at the following rates:-

Leasehold premises - over the unexpired term of the lease

Fixtures and equipment - 25-33% per annum
Asset rental - 4% per annum
Motor vehicles - 16.7% per annum

Depreciation of an asset commences when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Property and operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income statement evenly over the primary period of the contract.

Investment property

Investment property which is held to earn rental income is held at fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the investment property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL), 'available-for-sale' (AFS) financial assets and 'loans and receivables'. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial liabilities'.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset or liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL. A financial asset or liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
- it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments which the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
- it is a derivative which is not designated as an effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial instruments which are classified as held for trading through profit or loss comprise bull and bear positions in securities and derivative instruments. Bull and bear positions are valued at closing out prices at the close of business on the balance sheet date, namely bull positions at the bid price and bear positions at the offer price.

Derivatives are initially recognised at the contract value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

A financial asset or liability, other than a financial asset or liability held for trading, may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

- such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
- the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy; or
- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 *Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement* permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss within operating profit. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset or financial liability.

The Group's financial assets designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition include positions in quoted and unquoted securities. The valuation technique and assumptions used to fair value these instruments are disclosed within note 16.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Available-For-Sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are revalued to their fair value with such revaluation being taken directly to equity. Where such investments are in unlisted securities, they are valued by the directors at the most recent available representative arm's length price. Investments in listed securities held as available-for-sale investments are valued by reference to the market price of the shares. They are re-measured to their fair value at each balance sheet date.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables which have fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Group first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income in the income statement. Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in the income statement.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. 'Significant' is to be evaluated against the original cost of the investment and 'prolonged' against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income statement – is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the income statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

1. Accounting Policies (continued)

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income statement. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the forecast transaction or firm commitment occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and on-demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty. For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are measured on initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. An equity instrument is any contract which evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items that are unusual because of their size, nature or incidence and which the Directors consider should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Group's results.

Merger reserve

This reserve comprises the capital reserves acquired by the Company when it acquired the entire share capital of Shore Capital Group plc on 26 March 2010.

Repurchase of share capital (own shares)

Where share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Such shares may either be held as Own Shares (treasury shares) or cancelled. Where own shares are subsequently re-sold from treasury, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is transferred to/from retained earnings.

Other reserves

This reserve comprises amounts taken to equity in respect of i) share based payments; ii) deferred tax movements; and iii) revaluations of available-for-sale investments.

2. Segment Information

Additional analysis of revenue and results is presented in the Chairman's Statement.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their services, and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

2. Segment Information (continued)

- Capital Markets provides research in selected sectors, broking for institutional and professional clients, market-making in AIM and small cap stocks and corporate finance for mid and small cap companies.
- Asset Management provides advisory services, and manages specialist funds.
- Central Costs comprises the costs of the Group's central management team and structure
- Principal Finance comprises investments and other holdings acquired, together with principal finance activities conducted, using our own balance sheet resources.

Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segmental performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss.

Year ended 31 December 2016	Capital Markets £'000	Asset Management £'000	Central costs £'000	Principal Finance £'000	Consolidated £'000
Revenue	28,286	10,446	<u>-</u>	676	39,408
Results					
Balance sheet impairments	-	-	-	2,664	2,664
Depreciation	298	85	57	606	1,046
Interest expense	64	-	-	327	391
Profit/(loss) before tax	6,787	1,980	(2,119)	(4,243)	2,405
Assets	61,503	5,894	3,535	40,237	111,169
Liabilities	(29,274)	(2,149)	(828)	(11,833)	(44,084)

No material amounts of revenue or profit before tax were generated outside Europe.

Year ended 31 December 2015	Capital Markets £'000	Asset Management £'000	Central costs £'000	Principal Finance £'000	Consolidated £'000
Revenue	23,350	9,500	<u>-</u>	9,102	41,952
Results					
Depreciation	280	109	58	530	977
Interest expense	27	-	-	290	317
Profit/(loss) before tax	4,693	2,653	(788)	5,139	11,697
Assets	76,213	5,522	1,746	39,324	122,805
Liabilities	(44,775)	(2,229)	(68)	(8,691)	(55,763)

No material amounts of revenue or profit before tax were generated outside Europe.

391

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

3. Operating Profit

4.

5.

	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Operating profit has been arrived at after charging:		
Impairment of available-for-sale investment	-	(1,204)
Depreciation	(1,046)	(977)
Balance sheet impairments	(2,664)	-
Property lease rentals	(673)	(658)
Exchange differences, excluding those arising on financial instruments		
Exchange differences	(119)	34
	2016 £'000	201 £'00
	£'000	£'00
Bank interest	19	18
Other interest receivable	220	
	239	19
Finance Costs		
	2016	201
	£'000	201 £'00
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans	391	31

317

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

6. Employees and Directors

a) Employee numbers

The average number of employees, including Executive Directors, employed by the Group during the financial year was:

	2016	2015
	No.	No.
Capital Markets - Securities	74	70
- Corporate Advisory	14	13
Asset Management	58	51
	146	134
b) The costs incurred in respect of these employees comprise	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Salaries and commission Social security costs Pension costs	16,306 1,492 487	13,447 1,657 290
	18,285	15,394

c) Employee Share Option Plan

The Group maintains a Share Option Plan (the "Plan") under which present and future employees of the Group may be granted options to subscribe for new share capital of the Group. The Plan is used to attract and retain high-calibre employees to continue to develop and expand the business of the Group. Such options are granted by the Board at a price no less than the average quoted market price of the Company's share on the date of grant. Options granted under the Plan are subject to vesting periods which are based on continuing service. Thereafter the options may be exercised for the rest of their 10 year life without further test. Options are forfeited if the employee chooses to leave the Group before the options vest under certain circumstances. If an employee holding vested options leaves the group, the options held must be exercised within 6 months of the date of leaving. As at 31 December 2016, there were 1,553,856 (2015: 1,674,073) options in issue under the Plan that were exercisable at prices ranging from 110p to 335p. Details of the share options outstanding during the year were as follows:

	2016 Number of share options	Weighted average exercise price	Number of share options	Weighted average exercise price
Outstanding at beginning of year Granted during the year Cancelled during the year	1,674,073 - (120,217)	189p n/a 205p	1,674,073	189p n/a
Outstanding at the end of the year	1,553,856	188p	1,674,073	189p
Exercisable at the end of the period	1,528,856		1,649,073	

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

6. Employees and Directors (continued)

Employee Share Option Plan (continued) c)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2 years (2015: 3 years).

d) **Emoluments of the Directors of the Company**

21	J.	1	~
$\Delta \mathbf{I}$	U.	1	U

2016	Gross salary £'000	Bonus, commission and other income £'000	Benefits £'000	Total £'000
Howard Shore	200	600	62	862
Lynn Bruce	40	-	-	40
Dr Zvi Marom	40	-	-	40
James Rosenwald	40	-	-	40
	320	600	62	982
2015	Gross salary	Bonus, commission and other income	Benefits	Total
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Howard Shore	200	1,000	49	1,249
Lynn Bruce Dr Zvi Marom	40 40	-	-	40 40
James Rosenwald	40		- -	40
James Rosenward	320	1,000	49	1,369

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

6. Employees and Directors (continued)

e) The following options over unissued ordinary shares of nil par value have been granted to the directors:

	Number of options over unissued ordinary shares	Date of grant	Exercise price per ordinary share	Exercise date
Howard Shore	592,199	15 January 2002	205p	Before 5 January 2019

The closing price of the shares at 31 December 2016 was 227.5p (2015: 425.0p) and the range during the year was 425.0p to 220.0p.

f) Related party transactions

The directors and all other staff are entitled to deal in securities through a subsidiary company in accordance with in-house dealing rules, which include the provision that staff are entitled to reduced commission rates.

The directors are of the opinion that such transactions are not material to either the Company or the individual concerned.

Transactions between Group companies comprise management charges for central overheads which are recharged throughout the Group.

During the year, Puma Brandenburg Limited ("PBL") repaid in full its $\[\in \]$ 3.5 million loan outstanding to the Group. PBL is a related party as it has a high degree of common ownership. The loan was held on arm's length terms and conditions. During the year, the Group received income from PBL as follows: £221,000 (2015: £244,000) to Lily Partnership Limited and £2,354,000 (2015: £2,014,000) to Puma Property Investment Advisory Limited.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of £31,000 (2015: nil) in respect of investment advisory services provided to Specialist Investment Properties plc, an entity in which the Group holds an equity stake. This amount was included in Group debtors at the year end.

g) Compensation of key management personnel

Excluding directors of the parent company (see note 6.d) the remuneration of key management during the year was as follows:

	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Salaries and other short-term benefits	3,260	3,081

7. Taxation

The tax charge comprises:	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Current tax	1,208	864
Prior year overprovision	(1)	(4)
Movement in deferred tax	(653)	142
	554	1,002

Tax in Guernsey is charged at 0%. Tax on the profits of the Group's UK subsidiaries is charged at 20.00% (2015: 20.25%) as detailed below:

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax	2,405	11,697
Tax thereon at 20.0% (2015: 20.3%)	481	2,369
Effects of:		
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes	80	110
Income not chargeable to tax	(2)	(1,442)
Movement in deferred tax not recognised	(4)	(75)
Effect of different tax rates in other jurisdictions	-	106
Prior year adjustment	(1)	(66)
	554	1,002

The average tax rate on the profit before tax for the Group's UK activities for 2016 was 20% (2015: 20.25%). Finance Act 2016, which was substantially enacted in September 2016, included provisions to reduce the rate of corporation tax to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020, and Finance Act (No.2) included provisions to reduce the rate of corporation tax to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. To the extent that deferred tax reverses at a different rate than it is recognised at then this will change the impact on the net deferred tax liability

Deferred Taxation	Share- based payments £'000	Temporary differences £'000	Total £'000
At 1 January 2015	785	(455)	330
Debit to income statement	-	(142)	(142)
Debit to comprehensive income	-	(6)	(6)
Credit to equity	(54)	-	(54)
At 31 December 2015	731	(603)	128
Credit to income statement	2	651	653
Debit to comprehensive income	-	(215)	(215)
Debit to equity	(581)	-	(581)
At 31 December 2016	152	(167)	(15)

8. Dividends

	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:		
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of 5.0p per share	-	1,208
_	-	1,208

The directors propose a dividend of 5.0p for the year ended 31 December 2016.

9. Earnings per Share

The earnings and number of shares in issue or to be issued used in calculating the earnings per share and diluted earnings per share in accordance with IAS 33 were as follows:

As at 31 December 2016 there were 21,768,791 ordinary shares in issue (2015: 21,768,791). Movements in the number of shares in issue during the year are set out in note 24.

	20	2016		15
	Basic	Diluted	Basic	Diluted
Earnings (£)	1,302,000	1,302,000	6,445,000	6,445,000
Number of shares	21,768,791	22,347,760	23,796,516	24,698,644
Earnings per share (p)	6.0	5.8	27.1	26.1
Comprehensive earnings (£)	1,582,000	1,582,000	6,599,000	6,599,000
Number of shares	21,768,791	22,347,760	23,796,516	24,698,644
	, ,	, ,		
Earnings per share (p)	7.3	7.1	27.7	26.7
Calculation of number of shares	of number of shares 2016 2015		15	
	Basic	Diluted	Basic	Diluted
Weighted average number of shares	21,768,791	21,768,791	23,796,516	23,796,516
Dilutive effect of share option schemes		578,969	_	902,128
	21,768,791	22,347,760	23,796,516	24,698,644

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

10. Lease Commitments

At 31 December 2016 the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under operating leases, which fall due as follows:

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Total lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the		
year:	673	658
Operating leases as a lessee	2016	2015
•	£'000	£'000
Amounts payable in under one year	788	757
Amounts payable between one and five years	876	1,404
Amounts payable between five and ten years	-	
	1,664	2,161

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties.

Operating leases - as a lessor	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Amounts receivable in under one year	206	-
Amounts receivable between one and five years	823	-
After five years	4,115	-
	5,144	

Operating lease receipts represent rentals receivable by the Group on its investment property.

11. Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016	Designated at fair value £'000	Held for trading £'000	Loans and receivables	Available- for-sale securities £'000	Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost £'000	Total £'000
Financial assets						
Cash and cash equivalents	-	-	-	-	23,937	23,937
Trading assets (bull positions)	208	12,082	_	_	_	12,290
Trade receivables in the	200	12,002				12,290
course of collection	-	_	-	-	42,585	42,585
Principal Finance						
investments	7,694	-	-	527	-	8,221
Derivatives	-	123	-	-	-	123
Other assets		-	-	-	6,242	6,242
	7,902	12,205	-	527	72,764	93,398
Accrued income						2,947
Goodwill						381
Intangible assets						2,135
Property, plant & equipment						9,423
Investment properties						2,885
Total assets per balance sheet					_	111,169
Financial liabilities						
Bank overdrafts and borrowings	-	-	-	-	11,080	11,080
Trading positions (bear positions)	-	765	-	-	-	765
Trade creditors in the						
course of collection	-	-	-	-	159	159
Derivatives	-	224	-	-	-	224
Other liabilities		-	-	-	29,194	29,194
		989	=	=	39,941	41,422
Accruals						1,773
Tax liabilities						770
Provision for liabilities and c	harges					104
Deferred tax liability					_	15
Total liabilities per balance	sheet				<u></u>	44,084

11. Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

As at 31 December 2015	Designated at fair value* £'000	Held for trading £'000	Loans and receivables £'000	Available- for-sale securities* £'000	Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost £'000	Total £'000
Financial assets			2 000	2000		
Cash and cash equivalents	-	-	-	_	22,113	22,113
Trading assets (bull positions)	95	9,249	-	-	-	9,344
Trade receivables in the course						
of collection	-	-	-	-	53,837	53,837
Loans	-	-	2,578	-	-	2,578
Principal Finance investments	6,231	-	-	110	-	6,341
Other assets		-	-	-	12,170	12,170
	6,326	9,249	2,578	110	88,120	106,383
Tax assets						-
Accrued income						3,208
Goodwill						381
Intangible assets						1,841
Property, plant & equipment						10,864
Deferred tax asset					_	128
Total assets per balance sheet					_	122,805
Financial liabilities						
Bank overdrafts and						
borrowings	-	_	-	_	9,616	9,616
Trading positions (bear						
positions)	-	946	-	_	_	946
Trade creditors in the course						
of collection	-	-	-	-	36,793	36,793
Derivatives	-	187	-	-	-	187
Other liabilities		-	-	-	5,268	5,268
	-	1,133	-	-	51,677	52,810
Accruals						1,937
Tax liabilities						481
Provision for liabilities and char	ges					535
Deferred tax liability	-					-
Total liabilities per balance shee	t					55,763
ı					=	

^{*}Restated: The prior year presentation incorrectly showed Non Current Principal Finance investments of £6,231,000 as being Available for Sale assets. A review of these assets has identified that they were treated correctly in the current financial statements as designated as Fair Value through Profit and Loss but presented incorrectly in prior periods and therefore have been represented in the notes as above. There is no income statement impact in the current or prior year as a result of this change. The impact has been on their classification on the statement of financial position. The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate to their fair values.

12. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of non controlling interest in subsidiary \pounds '000

Cost

At 1 January and 31 December 2016

381

The goodwill balance relates to the acquisition of non-controlling interests in the Capital Markets division.

There has been no impairment in the value of the asset, as the business continues to generate profits and positive cashflows (note 2) and is forecast to do so for the foreseeable future.

13. Intangible assets

	£'000
Cost	
At 1 January 2015	4,148
Disposal	(2,062)
Retranslation movement	(245)
At 31 December 2015	1,841
Retranslation movement	294
At 31 December 2016	2,135
Carrying amount	
At 31 December 2016	2,135
At 31 December 2015	1,841

The intangible assets represent the spectrum licences acquired through the acquisition of DBD.

There has been no impairment in the value of the asset. Management consider the carrying value not to be in excess of the fair value less costs to sell. The fair value has been determined with reference to external market transactions.

DBD owns spectrum licences in Germany, comprising a series of regional licences that run into perpetuity. The company also owned a series of national licences that run to 2021 which were sold during the prior year together with 6 out of 38 of its regional licences. The national licences were being amortised on a straight line basis over their remaining life.

Amortisation was charged within administrative expenditure in the income statement.

14. Property, Plant and Equipment

	Leasehold premises	Fixtures and equipment	Asset rental	Motor vehicles	Total
Cost	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
At 1 January 2015	890	3,449	13,048	238	17,625
Additions	-	356	-	7	363
Retranslation movement		(16)	734	(3)	715
At 31 December 2015	890	3,789	13,782	242	18,703
Additions	-	374	44	99	517
Disposals	-	(2)	-	-	(2)
Retranslation movement		46	2,717	8	2,771
At 31 December 2016	890	4,207	16,543	349	21,989
Depreciation and impairment					
At 1 January 2015	854	2,236	3,530	36	6,656
Charge for the year	36	371	530	40	977
Retranslation movement		(11)	217	-	206
At 31 December 2015	890	2,596	4,277	76	7,839
Charge for the year	-	395	606	51	1,052
Impairment for the year	-	-	2,488	-	2,488
Retranslation movement		41	1,146	-	1,187
At 31 December 2016	890	3,032	8,517	127	12,566
Net Book Value					
At 31 December 2016		1,175	8,026	222	9,423
At 31 December 2015		1,193	9,505	166	10,864

As a result of a potential change in future intentions for the Group's rental asset, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the asset used in the Principal Finance reportable segment. The review led to an impairment charge of £2,488,000 (£1,434,000 after tax and minority interests), which has been recognised in the income statement. The Group estimated the fair value less costs of disposal of the rental asset as £8,026,000, based on a review of the published market values of comparable assets.

15. Investment property

	Total
	£'000
At 1 January 2016	-
Additions	2,885
At 31 December 2016	2,885

The Group purchased an investment property in December 2016 which is held on the balance sheet at fair value. Its fair value is deemed to be its purchase price plus direct acquisition costs. Due to the purchase taking place in December 2016, no revaluation has been deemed necessary at the year end. Rental income from this property in the year was £7,000.

Total

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

16. Investments

Principal Finance Investments

	Listed investments	Unlisted investments	Total
	£'000	£'000	£'000
At 1 January 2015	2,532	1,267	3,799
Additions	-	3,750	3,750
Disposals	-	(123)	(123)
Revaluation in the year	(1,234)	149	(1,085)
At 31 December 2015	1,298	5,043	6,341
Additions	747	1,062	1,809
Disposals	-	(141)	(141)
Revaluation in the year	(369)	581	212
At 31 December 2016	1,676	6,545	8,221

Classification	Available for sale £'000	Fair Value through profit or loss £'000	Total £'000
At 31 December 2016	527	7,694	8,221
At 31 December 2015	110	6,231	6,341

Note 11 describes this classification in more detail.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

16. Investments (continued)

Additional information on principal subsidiaries.

Subsidiary	Country of registration and operation	Activity	Portion of ordinary shares and voting rights held
Trading Companies			
Shore Capital Group Treasury Limited	Guernsey	Treasury company	100%
Shore Capital Group Investments Ltd	Guernsey	Holds investments	100%
Puma Property Investment Advisory Ltd	Guernsey	Property advisory services	100%
Shore Capital International Asset	Guernsey	Intermediate Holding Co.	100%
Management Limited			
Shore Capital Finance Limited	Guernsey	Credit provider	100%
Spectrum Investments Limited 1	Guernsey	Holds investments	59.9%
DBD Deutsche Breitband Dienste	Germany	Telecoms	89.3%
Germannetworks (UK) Limited ¹	England and Wales	Telecoms	89.3%
Shore Capital Markets Limited ²	England and Wales	Intermediate Holding Co.	79.7%
Shore Capital Stockbrokers Limited ³	England and Wales	Broker/dealer	79.7%
Shore Capital and Corporate Limited ³	England and Wales	Corporate advisers	79.7%
Puma Investment Management Limited ⁴	England and Wales	Fund Management	72.2%
Shore Capital Limited	England and Wales	Fund Management	100%
Shore Capital Group plc	England and Wales	Intermediate Holding Co.	100%
Shore Capital Treasury Limited	England and Wales	Treasury company	100%
Shore Capital International Limited	England and Wales	Advisory services	100%
Shore Capital Management Limited	England and Wales	Member of an LLP	100%
Puma Ranger European Small and Mid-	Guernsey	Equity investment	83.3%
Cap Limited	•	•	
Limited Liability Partnerships The Lily Partnership LLP	England and Wales	Asset rental business	80%
Nominee Company			
Puma Nominees Limited	England and Wales	Nominee company	100%

¹ Spectrum Investments Limited is the intermediate holding company of, and held 89.3% of the ordinary shares and voting rights in, DBD Deutsche Breitband Dienste, which in turn holds 100% of the ordinary shares in Germannetworks (UK) Limited. As at the year end, the Company had a direct holding of 59.9% in Spectrum Investments Limited. The balance of the shares in each of Spectrum Investments Limited and DBD Deutsche Breitband Dienste were held by external investors.

² Shore Capital Markets Limited is the intermediate holding company of, and holds 100% of the ordinary shares and voting rights in, each of Shore Capital Stockbrokers Limited and Shore Capital and Corporate Limited. The Company currently has a direct holding of 79.7% in Shore Capital Markets Limited. The balance of the shares in Shore Capital Markets Limited were bought by senior executives of that company and its subsidiaries.

³ The Group's interest in each of Shore Capital Stockbrokers Limited and Shore Capital and Corporate Limited is held indirectly through Shore Capital Markets Limited (see note ² above).

⁴ Shore Capital Limited is the intermediate holding company of, and holds 72.3% of the ordinary shares and voting rights in, Puma Investment Management Limited. The Company currently has a direct holding of 100% in Shore Capital Limited. The balance of the shares in Puma Investment Management Limited were bought by senior executives of that company.

16. Investments (continued)

Non controlling interests

Summarised financial information about subsidiaries in the Group with non-controlling interests are as follows:

			Relating to non-controlling interests		
	Profit/(loss) for the year	Net assets at 31/12/2016	Profit/(loss) for the year	Net assets at 31/12/2016	Dividends paid in the year
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Spectrum Investments Limited / DBD	(131)	4,583	(53)	1,832	-
Shore Capital Markets Limited	5,314	32,380	1,079	6,553	1,245
Puma Investment Management Limited	1,159	1,771	317	460	814
Shore Capital Management Limited	(3,970)	(2,366)	(794)	(473)	-
Puma Ranger European Small and Mid-Cap	2	258	-	43	-
Limited					
			549	8,415	2,059

17. Trading assets

	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Held for Trading	2 000	2 000
Listed holdings at market value		
Equities	3,316	2,629
Debt instruments	8,766	6,620
	12,082	9,249
Designated at fair value		
Unlisted holdings:		
Invested in own fund and products	-	13
Other (including hedge funds)	208	82
	208	95
	12,290	9,344

The fair value of financial assets has been determined as follows:

- 1. for listed holdings the fair value is determined, in whole, by reference to published price quotations; and
- 2. for unlisted holdings fair value is estimated wherever possible using observable market prices or rates. Where none exist, the fair value is determined by the directors at the most recent available representative arm's length price or valuation. The fair value of the largest holding has been estimated based on the net asset value of the investee company which itself is based on external professional property valuations.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

18. Trade and Other Receivables

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Trade receivables	42,585	53,837
Other receivables	6,242	12,116
Loans	-	2,578
Prepayments and accrued income	2,947	3,208
	51,774	71,739

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their fair value.

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Between 30 and 60 days	110	90
Between 60 and 90 days	10	37
Greater than 90 days	181	32
	301	159
Amounts not yet due	51,473	71,580
Trade receivables	51,774	71,739

The table above shows the ageing of trade debtors which are past their due date for payment but not impaired.

	£'000
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts	
At 1 January 2015	69
Increase in the allowance	20
Amounts recovered during the year	(9)
Amounts written off	(10)
At 31 December 2015	70
Increase in the allowance	31
Amounts recovered during the year	(9)
Amounts written off	(20)
At 31 December 2016	72

Trade receivables are shown net of provision for doubtful debts amounting to £72,000 (2015: £70,000).

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

19. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Analysis of Changes in Net Funds

	As at 1 January 2016 £'000	Cash flows £'000	As at 31 December 2016 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand	22,113	1,824	23,937
	22,113	1,824	23,937

20. Trade and Other Payables

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Trade creditors	22,449	36,793
Other creditors	5,984	4,254
Other taxation and social security	920	1,014
Accruals and deferred income	1,773	1,937
	31,126	43,998

The directors consider that the carrying value of trade and other payables approximates their fair value.

21. Borrowings

	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
Bank loans at amortised cost Total Borrowings	11,080 11,080	9,616 9,616
Amount due to be repaid within 12 months	431	360
Amount due to be repaid after 12 months	10,649	9,256

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

21. Borrowings (continued)

4 421 D 4 2016	Amortising USD loan facility £'000	Total £'000
As at 31 December 2016		
Bank loans	11,080	11,080
	11,080	11,080
	Amortising USD loan facility £'000	Total £'000
As at 31 December 2015		
Bank loans	9,616	9,616
	9,616	9,616

The Group has a GBP facility comprising a multi-option overdraft facility and a revolving credit facility which are secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Group's stockbroking subsidiary.

The weighted average interest rates paid during the year were as follows:

	2016	2015
	%	%
Bank overdrafts	2.25	2.25
Bank loans	3.10	2.95

The other principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows.

- (i) Sterling based facilities of £20,000,000 in total comprising a multi-option overdraft facility of £15,000,000 and a revolving credit facility of £5,000,000. Under this facility, the Group has the option to draw down a fixture for a fixed maturity or an overdraft which is repayable on demand. The average effective interest rate on bank overdrafts was approximately 2.25% per annum (2015: 2.25%) and was determined on a base rate plus a margin. Both facilities were undrawn as at 31 December 2016.
- (ii) an amortising loan of \$13,664,000 (2015: \$14,195,000) for which the Group has liability for 80%. The principal is repayable in quarterly instalments with a final bullet repayment due on 31 March 2018. The loan is secured by a charge over the Group's rental asset. The loan carries an interest rate at 1.0% above 3 month USD LIBOR.

Undrawn Facilities

The Group's sterling based loan facility of £20,000,000 is structured as a multi option facility of £15,000,000 and a revolving credit facility of £5,000,000. As at the year end, £15,000,000 (2015: £15,000,000) was undrawn on the multi-option facility and £5,000,000 (2015: £5,000,000) was undrawn on the revolving credit advance facility.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

22. Provision for Liabilities and Charges

Provision for National Insurance contributions on share options:	2016 £'000	2015 £'000
At 1 January Credit in the year	535 (431)	535
At 31 December	104	535

This provision will be utilised when staff exercise their options during the period of 1 January 2017 to 9 January 2024.

23. Capital Commitments

There were no amounts which were contracted for but not provided in the financial statements (2015: £nil). During the prior year, Shore Capital made a commitment of \in 12.5 million to the Brandenburg Realty Fund of which \in 3.75 million has been drawn down as at the year end.

24. Share Capital

	Number of shares	£'000
Shore Capital Group Limited - ordinary shares of nil par value		
At 1 January 2015	24,164,000	_
Shares repurchased and cancelled	(2,395,209)	
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016	21,768,791	-

In 2015 and 2016 there were no ordinary shares issued as the result of the exercise by employees of share options granted in prior years under the terms of the Share Option Plan.

During 2015, a total of 2,395,209 Shares were repurchased by the Company under a Tender Offer and then cancelled. Shares were tendered at a price of £4.175 per share.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 21), cash and cash equivalents (see note 19), and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings (see Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity).

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash and liquid resources, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, bull and bear positions in equities, financial assets designated at fair value and derivative instruments.

The profit and loss arising from dealings in financial instruments is included within Revenue. This is analysed by financial instrument as follows:

Net gains or losses arising from dealings in financial instruments	Designated at fair value £'000	Held for trading £'000	Available- for-sale securities £'000	Total £'000
2016				
Equities	35	9,595	213	9,843
Debt	143	-	-	143
	178	9,595	213	9,986
2015				
Equities	100	6,945	(1,085)	5,960
Debt	7	=	-	7
	107	6,945	(1,085)	5,967

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are market risk, currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

a) Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk in respect of its trading in equities and other holdings. The fair value at the year end of positions arising from these activities is disclosed in the Financial Statements in note 17 for trading assets and the carrying value of the trading liabilities as disclosed on the face of the balance sheet is equal to the fair value.

Other holdings mainly comprise seeding of own Funds which have been launched (details of which are set out in the Chairman's statement) and other investments that are held in the Principal Finance division.

The year end positions arising from market-making activities are in line with those maintained throughout the year. Both the permitted size of each trading book and individual positions are predetermined and dealers are set prescribed limits within which they can deal. Day-to-day risk monitoring is carried out by the Head of the Capital Markets division and the Compliance Department.

Based on a 10% movement in the market price of equities, with all other variables remaining unchanged, the effect on profit for the year and equity would be as follows in the table below. The Group's sensitivity to equity prices has not changed significantly from the prior year.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

		Change in	2016		Change in	2015
		price of	Effect on		price of	Effect on
	Net equity	UK equities	profit and on equity	Net equity	UK equities	profit and on equity
	£'000	%	£'000	£'000	%	£'000
Listed equities (net)	2,551	10%	255	1,683	10%	168
Listed investments	1,676	10%	168	1,298	10%	130

b) Currency Risk

Other than borrowings as set out in note 21, the Group's foreign currency cash and bank balances at the year end were not material and are not separately disclosed in the Financial Statements. Where relevant, currency is bought or sold at the time of trading in order to meet the funds due or receivable on settlement.

The fair value at the year end of Principal Finance investments, trading assets and other holdings which were denominated in foreign currencies was:

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
Held in Euros	3,426	1,841
	,	1,041
Held in US Dollars	3,346	3,200

The Group enters into forward contracts for the sale of foreign currencies in order to hedge its exposure to fluctuations in currency rates in respect of trading assets and other holdings. These forward contracts are fair valued at the balance sheet date based on a discounted cash flow basis using relevant market data on foreign exchange and interest rates, with any change in value taken to the Income Statement.

The amount taken to the Income Statement during the year was a loss of £1,474,000 (2015: £460,000 profit).

As at the year end the fair value of forward contracts which were hedging trading assets and other holdings was a net asset of £123,000 (2015: £54,000 net asset). The related notional contracts as at 31 December 2016 were £10,719,000 (2015: £14,719,000). These were all due to mature in January 2017.

The table below illustrates the sensitivity of the profit for the year and of equity with regards to currency movements on financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

The retranslation of net investment in foreign currencies is excluded from the following table.

Based on a 10% movement in the Euro and US Dollar against sterling exchange rates, the effect on profit for the year and equity would be as follows:

	2016		2015	
	Euro US Dollar		Euro	US Dollar
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
10% Stronger against GBP	460	(1,246)	298	(972)
10% Weaker against GBP	(376)	1,020	(270)	880

Profits shown as positives, losses as negatives

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

c) Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to long-term fixed borrowings is set out in note 21.

The interest bearing financial assets and liabilities of the Group comprise cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts and bank borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents receive, and bank overdrafts pay, interest at floating rates linked to either bank base rates or money market rates. The Group has a £15m overdraft facility and a £5m revolving credit facility which are both renewable annually. These facilities charge interest at rates linked to money market rates. The Group also has an amortising loan of \$13,664,000 for which there is a cash flow hedge to fix the rate of interest. The bank borrowings are described in more detail in note 21.

A positive 100 basis point movement in interest rate applied to the average value of balance sheet items which are subject to floating interest rates would result in the following impact on profit for the year:

	2016	2015
	£'000	£'000
+100 basis point movement in interest rates	11	11
As percentage of total shareholders' equity	0.019%	0.019%

The Group would experience an equal and opposite impact on profit should the interest rate move by negative 100 basis points.

d) Credit Risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables.

The Group's cash and cash equivalents are held with a diversified range of banks, each of which is a major UK clearing bank and supported by a government guarantee.

The Group's main credit risk is attributable to its trade and other receivables. The amounts shown in the balance sheet arise from trading in equities. The Group seeks to deal with credit-worthy counterparties and the majority are financial institutions. As a result, the counterparties are generally subject to certain minimum capital requirements which serves to limit the credit risk to the Group.

The Group monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available, external credit ratings and/or reports on customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The carrying value of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which is net of impairment losses, represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk. The Group's top five trade receivables counterparty exposures are as follows:

	2016
	£'000
TD Waterhouse	13,882
UBS AG	2,989
Redmayne Bentley	2,154
Hargreave Lansdown Stockbrokers	896
Simply Stockbroking	732
	20,653

2016

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

d) Credit Risk (continued)

	2015
	£'000
TD Waterhouse	8,000
Merrill Lynch Int DM	6,597
Redmayne Bentley	1,574
Barclays Stockbrokers	1,141
Simply Stockbroking	618
	17,930

e) Liquidity Risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management rests with the board of directors. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and borrowing facilities to meet its actual and forecast cash flows and matching maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Note 21 includes details of undrawn facilities available to the Group.

Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The table below reflects the contractual maturities, including interest payments, of the Group's financial liabilities as at 31 December:

2016	Repayable on demand £'000	Due within 3 months £'000	between 3 months and 12 months £'000	Due between 1 year and 5 years £'000	Total £'000
Trading liabilities	-	765	-	-	765
Trade payables	159	-	-	-	159
Derivatives	-	107	-	117	224
Bank loans and overdrafts	-	188	560	11,101	11,849
Other liabilities	-	27,525	1,177	-	28,702
Tax liabilities	-	-	770	-	770
Accruals		1,773	-	-	1,773
	159	30,358	2,507	11,218	44,242

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

e) Liquidity Risk (continued)

2015	Repayable on demand £'000	Due within 3 months £'000	Due between 3 months and 12 months £'000	Due between 1 year and 5 years £'000	Total £'000
Bear Positions	-	946	-	-	946
Trade payables	36,793	-	-	-	36,793
Derivatives	-	-	-	187	187
Bank loans and overdrafts	-	151	450	9,136	9,737
Other liabilities	-	4,564	704	-	5,268
Tax liabilities	-	-	481	-	481
Accruals		1,937	-	-	1,937
	20,740	7,598	1,635	9,323	55,349

The contractual maturities relating to the bank loans reflect gross cash flows, which differ to the carrying values of the liabilities at the balance sheet date.

f) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Based on the established fair value and model governance policies and the related controls and procedural safeguards the Group employs, management believe the resulting estimates in fair values recorded in the statement of financial position are reasonable and the most appropriate at the Balance Sheet date.

For trading portfolio assets and liabilities, financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value and financial investments available-for-sale which are listed or otherwise traded in an active market, for exchange-traded derivatives, and for other financial instruments for which quoted prices in an active market are available, fair value is determined directly from those quoted market prices (level 1).

For financial instruments which do not have quoted market prices directly available from an active market, fair values are estimated using valuation techniques, based wherever possible on assumptions supported by observable market prices or rates prevailing at the balance sheet date (level 2). This is the case for some unlisted investments and other items which are not traded in active markets.

For some types of financial instruments, fair values cannot be obtained directly from quoted market prices, or indirectly using valuation techniques or models supported by observable market prices or rates. This is the case for certain unlisted investments. In these cases, fair value is estimated indirectly using valuation techniques for which the inputs are reasonable assumptions, based on market conditions (level 3).

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

f) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

2016	Level 1 Quoted market price £'000	Level 2 Market observable inputs £'000	Level 3 Non- market observable inputs £'000	Total £'000
Principal Finance Investments Trading assets and other holdings at fair	1,676	-	6,545	8,221
value Financial instruments	12,276	14 123	-	12,290
	12.066			123
Total financial assets	13,966	123	6,545	20,634
Trading liabilities	765	-	-	765
Financial instruments		224	-	224
Total financial liabilities	<u>765</u>	224	-	989
2015	Level 1 Quoted market	Level 2 Market	Level 3 Non- market	
	mai Ku	observable	observable	
	price	observable inputs	observable inputs	Total
				Total £'000
Principal Finance investments Bull positions and other holdings at fair	price	inputs	inputs	
Principal Finance investments Bull positions and other holdings at fair value	price £'000	inputs	inputs £'000	£'000
Bull positions and other holdings at fair	price £'000 1,298	inputs	inputs £'000	£'000 6,341
Bull positions and other holdings at fair value	price £'000 1,298	inputs £'000 - -	inputs £'000	£'000 6,341 9,344
Bull positions and other holdings at fair value Financial instruments Total financial assets	price £'000 1,298 9,344 - 10,642	inputs €'000 - - 54	inputs £'000 5,043	£'000 6,341 9,344 54 15,739
Bull positions and other holdings at fair value Financial instruments Total financial assets Bear positions	price £'000 1,298 9,344	inputs £'000	inputs £'000 5,043	£'000 6,341 9,344 54 15,739
Bull positions and other holdings at fair value Financial instruments Total financial assets	price £'000 1,298 9,344 - 10,642	inputs €'000 - - 54	inputs £'000 5,043	£'000 6,341 9,344 54 15,739

Included in the fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value in the statement of financial position are those estimated in full or in part using valuation techniques based on assumptions that are not supported by market observable prices or rates (level 3). For such financial instruments, the directors have generally made reference to published net asset values (derived by the manager of such investments) and used judgement over the use of those net asset values. The net asset values are generally derived from the underlying portfolios which are themselves valued using unobservable inputs. The significant unobservable inputs comprise the long term revenue growth rate, long term pre-tax operating margin and discounts for lack of marketability. A change in any of these inputs may result in a change in the fair value of such investments.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016

25. Financial Instruments (continued)

f) Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

There may be uncertainty about a valuation, resulting from the choice of valuation technique or model used, the assumptions embedded in those models, the extent to which inputs are not market observable, or as a result of other elements affecting such uncertainties and are deducted from the fair value produced by valuation techniques.

There have been no significant movements between level 1 and level 2 during the year.

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities which are recorded at fair value:

		Gains			
	At 1	recorded	Purchases		At 31
	January	in profit	and	Sales and	December
	2016	or loss	transfers	transfers	2016
	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000	£'000
Total financial assets	5,043	794	1,061	(353)	6,545

26. Subsequent events

- (i) On 10 March and 17 March 2017, the Group purchased two further investment properties for total consideration of £2.9 million, bringing the aggregate investment properties held by the Group to £5.7 million.
- (ii) On 24 March 2017 Shore Capital International Asset Management Limited ("SCIAML"), a subsidiary of the Group, awarded growth shares to David Kaye, the CEO of the Asset Management division. The award is subject to relevant approvals. As part of the transaction, SCIAML will acquire Mr Kaye's existing shares in Puma Investment Management Limited ("PIML") in exchange for 22.20% of the ordinary shares in SCIAML. Following the transaction, SCIAML will own 91.85% of PIML and accordingly Mr Kaye's holding of ordinary shares in SCIAML will equate to his existing economic interest of 20.39% in PIML.

Subject to meeting specific growth targets for the profitability and value of the SCIAML business within a 10 year period, Mr Kaye's holding of growth shares together with his holding of ordinary shares in SCIAML will in aggregate represent a maximum entitlement of 43.55% of SCIAML, which will equate to an economic interest of 40.00% in PIML.